
Marin Children and Families Commission
MINUTES
May 8, 2024

I. CALL TO ORDER – An announcement was made that Commissioner Beuerman
would be presiding over the meeting. The meeting was called to order at 4:12 pm.

II. ROLL CALL
Commissioners in attendance:
Kari Beuerman
Angie Evans
Dr. Jessica Hollman
Kelly McKinley
Sandra Rosenblum
Dave Bonfilio – Commissioner Emeritus

Commissioners excused:
Aideen Gaidmore – Vice Chair
Itoco Garcia – Chair
Supervisor Eric Lucan
Lisa Raffel

Staff in attendance:
Maria Niggle – Executive Director
Michelle Fadelli - Manager of Public Policy and Communications
Beatriz Duran – Administrative Asst.
Susanne Kreuzer – Help Me Grow Marin

Guests in attendance:
Raissa de la Rosa – Marin County Economic Vitality Coordinator

III. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. MINUTES for Special Commission Meeting April 30, 2024: Commissioner
Emeritus Bonfilio noted that he should have been listed as present. Commissioner
McKinley requested that the minutes reference her comment regarding the need to
create a process for offering and awarding sponsorships.

Commissioner McKinley made a motion to approve the minutes of the special
commission meeting on April 30, 2024, as amended.
Motion/Second: McKinley/Hollman

Page 1



The motion to approve was unanimous.

2. First 5 Marin Quarterly Financial Statements, January-March 2024

● Commissioner McKinley asked about “budget-to-actuals.”
● Commissioner Emeritus Bonfilio noted that there is a history of long-delayed

revenues from First 5 California.
● Commissioner McKinley asked why there is such a variance on expenses.

Dave said it was related to timing on projects that haven’t requested their
funding. Executive Director Maria Niggle added that some of the delay is due
to an outside accounting firm.

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Raissa de la Rosa introduced herself as the new Marin County Economic Vitality
Coordinator. She said she had been working on housing and child care for the City
of Santa Rosa in support of business expansion and employee retention. (Michelle
Fadelli said they should talk about a future forum topic.)

V. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/STAFF REPORT
Maria Niggle complimented the recent Marin Communications forum on maternal
mental health, with the California Surgeon General Dr. Diana Ramos as keynote
speaker. Commissioner Beuerman said she was a great speaker, very personal and
informative. Dr. Hollman, who served on the panel discussion, added that the
Postpartum Support Center is being talked about. (Michelle Fadelli added that she
will be distributing the slides from the Surgeon General.)

Maria Niggle also reported that we have lost our auditor, and there’s not much time
to secure a new one before audit season. She further explained that a Request For
Qualifications for Audit Services has been developed, and the Commission will be
seeking responses from qualified CPAs.

Maria added that we have emailed the ten organizations who were selected in the
recent RFP process; 34 letters were sent to other organizations that were not
selected for funding.

Maria Niggle provided an update on the “Strategic Funding Coordinator” position.
The coordinator may be able to help identify additional funding for RFP applicants.

Maria Niggle also noted that (our guest) Raissa de la Rosa has submitted an
application to join the commission.

Finally, Maria reported that we had a request from the First 5 Association to support
six bills pending in the California Legislature.

Michelle Fadelli announced that the next Marin Communications Forum will be an
online event, June 6th at 10 am, related to “newcomer” immigrants and
unaccompanied minors in Marin. (Tony Thurmond, the California Superintendent of

Page 2



Public Instruction, has been invited to address the forum about “education equity” in
August. Other topics are planned for the Fall, including “special needs.”)

Susanne Kreuzer reported on Help Me Grow Marin. CalAIM funding has begun.
We can bill additional time for community health working with Partnership Health.
New referrals are scattered, including school-aged kids. Commissioner Hollman
asked why we are working with 11 year olds, and Commissioner McKinley asked
how did an 11 year old get referred. Susanne replied that one was from her student
at the College of Marin; another was referred by a doctor. Dr. Hollman asked if they
don’t have good primary care; Susanne said we refer back to the pediatrician if
necessary. She agreed that it’s always important to inform the pediatrician and
follow up with the child/family.

Maria Niggle said she wanted to acknowledge Susanne for her work on ECM
funding—Enhanced Care Management—with props to Aliados Health. Susanne
said it’s a great partnership. There is a pilot project in West Marin.

VI. COMMISSION ITEMS

1. Fairfax-San Anselmo Children’s Center – Executive Director Heidi Tomsky
introduced herself and noted that the Center has been working with Help Me Grow
Marin, and recently referred three families.

Heidi provided a status update on the Center. She said they were in the process of
purchasing the Deer Park property through a new entity: the Seiderman Legacy
Children’s Fund. The Center was founded in 1973 and serves low-income families.
The property was built 70 years ago, and there’s a lot of deferred maintenance.

The Center provides a subsidized Title X program, with services to income-qualifying
families. They currently serve 85 families, 110 children, infants through 5th grade.
63% of the families live in the Ross Valley; many of them keep their child care at the
Center after a move.

The Center is making repairs in two phases, beginning with a loan from the Marin
Community Foundation. They have a capital campaign advisor. Renovations over
time are expected to cost $8 million. The cities of Fairfax and San Anselmo have
recently contributed $25,000 each.

Maria Niggle noted that the Center provides the bulk of infant-toddler care in the
area. Heidi replied that infant-toddlers represent 12% of their services, and the
Center is the only provider with subsidized slots in the area.

Heidi added that they also offer transportation for the school-aged kids—so they can
be drive to school and back again for afternoon care. She also noted that the Center
operates year-round, full-time—including when schools are closed.

Page 3



Heidi also noted that if the program were to close, the subsidies would revert to the
State and the County would have to re-apply for funds.

It was also noted that there are about 800 children on the waiting list for subsidized
child care in Marin. Commissioner McKinley asked why there is such a gap; Heidi
replied that funding is capped by the State. Susanne Kreuzer said we also lost slots
during COVID. Commissioner Hollman asked if an agency needs to apply. YES.
Heidi added that there are a lot of strings attached when you are funded by the
government. Licensing and other requirements are higher for Title X programs.

Dave Bonfilio, Commissioner Emeritus, asked if the request is for acquisition or
improvements; Heidi confirmed it was for needed improvements. Maria Niggle
reminded commissioners about the “discretionary funds” in our budget. Currently,
we have $125,000 in uncommitted funds. This item is on the agenda as “information
only”—not for a vote. Dave recommended that the Commission make a decision at
the June meeting so the funding can be part of the current fiscal year.

Dave also asked where will the funds go and be held? Heidi said at/with the
Fairfax-San Anselmo Children’s Center. Commissioner Beuerman asked if our
unspent funds roll over; Maria said it depends on the budget. Commissioner
Sandra Rosenblum asked about the price for building-- $2 million (and $8 million in
renovations). This is dramatically less than if a school (or a school district) is
involved; code requirements pushed the estimate to $40 million in that scenario.
Dave said he is in favor of the request. Maria asked if we need the request in a
formal letter; Dave said it wasn’t necessary. (Michelle added that any letter would
need to be received the first week of June to be part of the commission packet for
the June 12th meeting.) Commissioner Rosenblum noted that the cities’ donations,
and a potential First 5 donation, are a small percentage of the $8 million needed.
She asked where else the Center is getting money. Heidi replied they have a $2.5
million loan through the Marin Community Foundation’s non-profit loan program as
well as funds from the County of Marin.

Maria Niggle said the dilemma with the Center is a symptom of a larger
issue—where we build housing, we need to allow for child care. It’s systems work!
Commissioner Rosenblum added that this is an essential program. She noted that
the area served is not one of the five areas designated for need across Marin
County.

2. Draft Budget Proposal for FY 2024-25 – for information and discussion
Maria Niggle reported that the Finance Committee met last month, and Beatriz
Duran has been working on documents. Maria noted that we have a rollover of
ARPA dollars-- $49,000. (Raissa de la Rosa added that the funds must be
obligated.) There is also a PEI grant for $25,000 and MAA funds of $10,000. The
RFP contracts should look like those approved by the Commission. Impact Funds
for the Marin County Office of Education and Marin Child Care Council. The Help
Me Grow budget is likely to change due to other funding. And a grant is pending
with the Marin Community Foundation.

Page 4



Michelle Fadelli noted that the “annual event” has been in the budget for a long time,
intended for a once-a-year policy breakfast; the forums are now monthly,
policy-based events (making this a duplication). She noted that about half of the
forums will be online, with no hard costs. For in-person events, we are seeking
co-sponsorships wherever possible to reduce costs.

Commissioner McKinley said that we need to clarify our reference for “beginning
cash balance/revenue.” Are we drawing on reserves? Dave Bonfilio said we do
need to draw on reserves to meet our obligations. Maria added that it’s hard to
know when revenues will arrive; they don’t get deposited on a regular schedule.

Dave Bonfilio shared that counties received a great deal of money after Proposition
10 was approved in 1998. (The funds were being collected and set aside… before
structures were established and commissioners were appointed and staff hired.)

Commissioner Hollman asked how we decided on the RFP amount. Maria said it
was based on early revenue estimates of $1.2 million, but reduced to one million as
estimates were reduced.

Commissioner McKinley said the proposed budget calls for drawing $162,000 from
reserves. Dave Bonfilio said we need to look at a stabilization fund. If our revenues
were to stop, we need to know the amount we need to run our organization for one
year. He said it was $750,000 and is now $860,000 but should be $1 million.

3. RFP Appeals Process – Maria Niggle reported that letters went out to the 34
applicants who were not selected for our community grants program. The
information and language was provided by our attorney. Commissioner
Rosenblum asked when the letters went out; Maria said on Monday, May 6th.
Sandra asked if the appeals are procedural only; YES, and appeals must be
submitted within three days of receipt of the letter. She reiterated that it was a
difficult process; there were $8 million of requests for $1 million of available funds.

VII. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS/FINAL COMMENTS

Commissioner Beuerman reported that it’s “CalFresh Awareness Month”; there will
be a presentation to the Board of Supervisors on May 21st.

Commissioner Rosenblum asked about the legislation referred by the First 5
Association. Maria said she wants commissioner review and support. (Michelle can
pull the legislative analyses for the six bills.)

Commissioner Hollman asked about commission openings. Maria said we have
two seats with terms expiring: the Health and Human Services position (currently
filled by Kari Beuerman) and an at-large position (currently filled by Itoco Garcia).
She said the process is not clear, and we need to have better procedures.
Commissioner McKinley asked if we will vote on a new chair and vice-chair. YES.

Page 5



VIII. ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Hollman made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Motion/Second: Hollman/McKinley.
The motion to adjourn was unanimous.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:51 p.m.

Page 6


